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' GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Governors (Trustees) present their annual report together with the accounts and independent auditor's
reports. of the charitable company for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report
serves the. purposes of both a trustees report, and a directors' report under company Iaw

The Academy Trust operates an Academy for students aged 4 to 19 serving thé Eastpo_u'rne area."When full,
- the school will have a capacity of 1,260 and had a roll of 1,221 in the October 2022 school census. - ‘

Following a consultation in line with DfE 'organizationa! change process the board made the decision in ‘May

2023 to close Sixth Form provision. This will have a small impact on the future years admission numbers of .

-the Academy and impact for this has been budgeted within the 23/24 three year financial forecast, approved
by the DfE :

Structure, governance and management A

Constitution : : ] ) .
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.“The charitable company's
:Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Governors are the trustees of Gildredge House Free School and are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law. Details of the Governors who served during the year are included
in the Reference and Admunlstratlve Details on page 1 :

Members' liability »

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year ‘after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not- exceedmg £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before
they ceased tobe a member :

Governors' indemnities . .

The Academy has purchased insurance to protect Governors from claims arising from negligent acts, errors
or omissions occurring whilst on company business through the Department for Education's Risk Protection
Arrangement. The insurance pr‘ovides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. '

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Governors .

Governors are recruited as required via an interview process carried out by Members and Governors jointly.
" Parent Governors are recruited via a confidential electronic Ballot of parents. After resignation of our staff
Governor, following advice and best practice from the DfE and National Governance Organisation, the

- decision was made by the board to no Ionger appoint to this position.

A skills audit of the Trust has been completed and recrmtment of Governors has been targeted to address
any |dent|f|ed Skl“S gaps. Governors' térms of office are for four years and Governors may be re-elected. -




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE_ YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and trammg of Governors

New Governors have a programme -of induction and all relevant policies are made available as reqwred
Governors are- encouraged to review their skills and undertake training as identified. The Governors together
with the Senior Leadership Team meet regularly during the year.

Trammg is delivered via in house presentations, consultants linked to |nd|v1dua| areas for development, the .
Iearnlng link (NGA) and training courses run by ESCC Governor Services. :

Organisational structure
The Trust is formed of a full Governlng Body which is serviced by the foIIowmg committees, to which
decision-making powers have been delegated as per-the agreed Scheme of Delegation:

. ‘Education
o - Enterprise
. Admissions :

Governors also undertake regular momtorlng visits at the school and aim to attend as many school events as' .
possmle S : A\
. \)

The Academy Headteacher is -C.raiAg Bull, Craig is the'apbointed Accounting Officer of the Trust.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
‘Governors have appointed: their Head Teacher, in accordance with the Trust’s Articles of Association and
details as laid out in the Academies Financial Handbook. The Head Teacher’s Annual performance
management is undertaken with the support of exte_rnal advisors and targets set in accordance with the
requirements of the school. SLT members, are appointed and-approved jointly by the Head Teacher and
Governors, with responsibility levels being agreed at Governor level to address the needs of the 'schoql and
requirements of the funding agreement. All are subject to robust performance management relevant to
 their post and responsibilities. :




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL '

* GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

" Number of employees who were relevant union officials -
during the relevant period

' Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of tlme spent on facrllty t|me

Percentage of time :

- 0% . S .
1%-50% - - ’ ST
51%-99% - ' '

100%.

Percentage of pay b|II spent on facrlrty time
'.Total cost of facility time

Total pay bill .
' Percentage of the total pay b|II spent.on faC|Ity time |
Paid trade union activities L
Time spent on paid trade union actlvmes asa percentage
of total. pald facility time hours

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Gildredge House presently has no connected parties.

Objectives and actiyities‘
Objects and aims

Gildredge House is an all- through 4-19 state—funded Free School, which was set up by a foundlng group
which included parents. The Academy Trust's objectlves are set out in |ts Artlcles of Assocuatlon Its pr|nC|paI

objectives are:

a. to advance for the pubhc benefit education in the United ngdom in particular. but without preJudlce to
_the generality of the foregoing establlshlng, maintaining, carrymg on, managlng and developmg a school

offering a broad and balanced curriculum,

“b. to promote for the beneflt of the inhabitants of Eastbourne and the surroundmg area the provision of
facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupatlon of individuals'who have need-of such facrlltles by -
reason of their youth, age, |nf|rm|ty or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances
or for the publlc at large in the interests of social welfare and wuth the object of improving the condition of

" life of the said mhabltants

Number of empfoyees




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives, strategies and activities

Our Mission -
Aspire, in all that we do.

Vision
Our vision'is to be-a school that:
« Aspires for balanced students who flourish through opportunltles and Iearnmg expenences in and
outside the classroom.
« Aspires toward a culture of care and weIIbemg, wh|ch results in optimal conditions for learning.
» Aspires to be proud of the Gildredge House.way, our uniform and atteridance.
« Aspires for all students to achieve their potential and beyond.
« Aspires for an inclusive, all-through, values-based curriculum.
* Aspires for students to understand their responsibility to be global citizens, contrlbutmg to a better
world. v
« Aspires to celebrate students’ individual and collective achievements
« Aspires to engage young people in environmental education and action.
.« Aspires for a strong. careers programme which supports students in further education, training, and
employment.
Aspires to work coIIaboratlver within our local, national, .and global communities.

The GiIdredge House Way - Ready,' Respectful, Safe

Our school is founded upon high staridards and high expectations of students’ attitude to learning. We
expect a commitment from all students to the Gildredge House Way, in and out of every lesson. We also

", believe it is important celebrate individual and collective achievements through a culture of ‘catching

studentsin’. |

Activities
In September- 2023, the school opened its doors to 60 into Receptlon 150 into Year 7 with appllcatlons to
these year groups again being oversubscribed. ' :

In June 2023, the decision was made, supported by the DfE’s Regional Schools Commissioner that that Sixth
Form should phase close due to the declining number, cost and the significance of the work identified- as
part of the SEF/SDP. As a result of this, the Sixth Form is scheduled to be phased out in July 2024 foIIowmg
wide-ranging stakeholder consultation. There are only 23 students in Year 13.

The school roll has maintained steady student numbers in primary and secondary phases, sixth form
numbers have been lower than anticipated. Recruitment has been successful and the number of teachers
" equates to 59 FTE with support staff being 55.

Public benefit ) .
In setting our objectives and planning our activities,. the Governors have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL '

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 - _ . “ : » .

Strateglc report

Achievements and performance

Our. strateglc priorities are grounded in enabling students at G|Idredge House to achieve their potentlal and
beyond, develop _values to support them in being a, positive member of society. Our priorities will help us
deliver an outstanding education whilst strengthening collaborative partnerships and ensuring the ohgbing
development and financial stability of Gildredge House. ’ »

Our priorities are based upon our self-evaluation outcomes, the Ofsted inspection framework, the
‘Opportunity for all: strong schools with great teachers for your child” white paper, the ‘Right support, right

place, right time’ Green paper and our school vision:

~ Our improvemer\t strategy is based upon.collaboration with stakeholders to address common issues and

themes borne out of communication, information, and data. We will un‘dergo annual self-evaluation which in -

turn, will lead to school. development and quality assurance processes which are augmented by challenge
and support activities. This will provide a wealth of information and data, which-can be collated to inform
future priorities. The cycle below details how we intend to ensure a clear - understanding of the
_.implementation and monitoring process: ..

. This strategic plan establishes a clear framework for planning, implementing, and reviewing our strategic
priorities over the next five years. To deliver the ambitious priorities, we have developed a series of
annual plans with specific reviews and action plans leading to measurable outcomes.

« A robust cycle of review ensures we can adjust our actions as required to ensure they are aligned with
idenitified areas for development emerging from our annual self-assessment cycle..

« The Board of Governors regularly scrutinises the effectiveness of the school in achieving its strategic

. priorities and in its contribution to educational value.
« All 5|x areas of the Strategic Plan will be tracked in terms of key indicators for school |mprovement




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The information which we hold and share with Governors includes (but may not be limited to):

iy N .
. S S Monitoring, \ \*\ )
School Self D;;?;"m Tracking of ~{ evaluation N stakeholder S
Evaluation ‘ Fl:n data = and review voice ‘
’ /. / cycle /. p
‘ 4

In addition to the priorities, the school also. considers local and national priorities when planning
"improvement activities. The Governors, along with, Senior Leaders, are members of networks and
partnerships. '

Quality assurance at Gildredge House involves the systematic monitoring and evaluation of programmes,
systems and processes to maintain and improve quality, equity.and efficiency to improve teaching and
learning — with the ultimate goal to support the best outcomes for students. Our approaches include
mechanisms that are internal and external. External mechanisms may consist of peer reviews, externally
sourced deep dives, audits, or reviews. Internal mechanisms may consist of school self-evaluation,
performance and accountability cycles, performance management and data tracking. These mechanisms .
have different but complementary purposes. They are part of a coherent, integrated system, with the
different methods supporting and relnforcmg each other. This kind of productlve synergy maintains our clear
focus on school development

Quality assurance is essential for accountability and supporting the ongoing development of teaching and
learning, which supports and challenges us to adapt to the changing needs of our students. The focus is on
_improvement, innovation and research that can then be shared to benefit all Iearners.

In a school improvement model based dppn collective efficacy principles, we must use collaboration, peer
' review and research to learn from one another to test and challenge our thinking, including developing
partnerships with other schools. To facilitate this, we will continue to pursue the following activities:

« School leaders at all levels meet regularly to discuss and systematically cover the different aspects of
school performance and improvement with a clear-agenda ensurlng that everyone is ready for
focused discourse that helps drive improvement for all.

« Our leaders regularly visit schools and classrooms together (e.g. for joint learning walks, student
pursuits and lesson observations) so they develop a shared picture.

« Gathering feedback from parents, staff and students is integral in assessmg our school’s
perférmance and progress.

« Implementing a formal quality assurance model which includés peer review and research enables
school leaders to identify our own development needs through improvement plans and self-
evaluations. . :

« Deploying staff across the phases of the school, based on their expert;se where this meets the.

. needs of the whole school.

« Developing an infrastructure and networks to support shared profess;onal learning and development -
— e.g. through subject networks, peer-to-peer covachlng and observations and reflections on
classroom practice linked to the school’s priorities.

« Promoting and .sharing practice-based Ieafning ‘and research focused on.areas that are likely to
impact the school’s priorities significantly.

« Developing and implementing a data strategy that gives Governors school leaders and staff access
to data when they need it. This will include a mechanism for sharmg and.analysing data across the
school through a single MIS allows for easy data analysis.

« Ensuring that school improvement is a core part of the business cycle of governance with a strong
culture of scrutiny and chal(enge around school-improvement at all levels.




* GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The senior leadership structure has chanhged to align with the newly established priorities. There is now an
Executive Head Teacher, Head of School for Primary and Secondary phases, 2 Deputy Head Teachers Quality '
of Education/Béhaviour and Attitudes, Assistant Head Teacher Personal Development, Assistant Head
Teacher Culture for Learning, Assistant Head Teacher and SENCO (Primary) and an Assistant Head Teacher

Inclusion working across the whole school.

‘ EYFS Key Performance Indicators

EYFS Key =~ performance

Indicator -

Total - | Baseline - 'AP3 Target %
Entries: 60 ' diffto AP3 °
Literacy 43% 80% +37%
Maths 72% '92% +20%
GLD~ 30% 80% +50%

. Key Stage 1 Key Performance Indicators

Y2 Key performance Indicator '
Total Entries: | Benchmark/ Achieved Baseline
60. - % diff to
' Target AP3
Reading | 86% 80% +15%
2022 (FFT20) 48 ‘
National:67% (82% “students

Provisional . .| (FFT50) "

2023 figure '

68% -

Writing ' 76% - 66% +24%
2022 o (FFT50) 40 -

National: a students

58%

Provisional

2023 figure

59% -
~Maths 87% 86% +9%
2022 | (FFT20) 52

National: 68% 82% - . students

Provisional (FFT50) '

2023 - figure -

70%

Phonics - Year 1: 80% or 48 étudénts passéd the phonics screening test with S children'attai-ning the top
score of 40/40. The pass mark of 32 remains the same. Last year’s Natlonal flgure was 75%; the National

: ﬁgure for 2023 is 81%.

N

»




GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUEl))
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Year 2: 86% {12 out of 14 students) passed the phonics screening test.

Key Learning and Future Actions: . Ensure that those children in Year 1, who were not secure with their
phonic knowledge, continue to receive small group, targeted support. However, if phonics is not-the most
successful route for them, particularly the two children.moving into Year 3, consider the Boosting Reading
Programme and other strategies to help them become competent readers. Ensure that the children moving
from EYFS to Year 1, who are not strong with their phonlc knowledge receive immediate targeted small
group support

Key Stage 2 Key Performance Indicators

Target % 2023 oo

Total Benchmark/Target AP3 Achieved

Entries: . . diff to ‘National

60 AP3 | figures

achieved
Reading 82% (FFT50) 80% (with 25% -| -2% 73%
- | 91% (FFT20) GDS) ‘

Writing 91% (FFT50) 70% (with 8% GDS) -21% 71%

‘Maths - 92% (FFTS0) 75% (with 17% -17% 73%
: GDS) .

Our data is a much-improved picture from last year with 60% of children achieving the Combined. Whilst.
the results are lower than FFT20 and FFTSO0, they are above National for Reading (69%), Maths (72%), GPS
(72%) and' Combined, (59%) with writing one point below the National of 71%. Of the cohort of 60
students, 45 children made good or outstanding progress from their stérting points in Maths, with 24 of
those children making outstanding progress. Our data also compares favourably to local EIP schools. The
-children who completed their SATs had a positive mindset and worked hard. In the news, there were
reports of children getting upset about a challenging reading paper, however children at Gildredge House
completed the paper with a positive attitude, resilience and perseverance as we had spent time focussing
on developlng these skllls linked to our ASPIRE values.

Key Learning and Future Actions: Analyse the test paper results and use this knowledge to provide CPD to
staff to ensure key areas are being actioned. Analysis of the test papers did not show any that could be
‘submitted to -gain remarking/additional points. We. have looked ‘at the standardised scores across the
papers to look at key themes and look at next steps (We noticed that our arithmetic was a strength which"
- we worked hard to improve through daily maths blast sessions but an area for focus would be problem
solving/reasoning: It is on our whole school maths action plan to look at how we problem solve and to

" develop a consistent approach. We are changing how we do our term 1 maths intervention so.in every
lesson we teach, a TA is going to work with a different group of children so every child gets to work in a
small group across the week and gets challenged based on their specific' needs rather than focussing on
interventions for just children with gaps in their learning. This year are a lower cohort than last year.

. Secondary and Sixth Form Phase

This year the results Natlonally returned to pre pandemlc (2019) levels The proportlon of Aor A* grades fell
to 27. 2% Natlonally, compared to 44.8% in 2021. ‘ :

-10-



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The following table shows the National trend of cumulatlve percentage of students for all subjects at A- LeveI
to prowde a context to this year’s results.

A* A B - b E .
2023 89 7.2 53.5 76.0 90.2 - . [97.3
2022 [14.6 36.4 62.8 82.6 R 98.4 )
‘o199 f7.7. 25.4 51.6 - 759 91 - 97.6 .

The 2023 cohort of students'did not sit Public Examinations at the end of Year 11; therefore, this was the
first time that they experienced real exams. Despite internal Mock Examinations and regular assessments,
students weré undoubtedly impacted by the lack of prior experience.

.Across the United Kingdom 79% of students were awarded their first choice University placement which was
down from the previous Year. 56% of Gildredge House students were awarded their first choice University
placement, 14% secured placements elsewhere 25% have secured alternative pathways and 5% are -
‘fepeating Year 13.

Y13 Key performance Indicator ' 7 .
Total Entries: 96 Benchmark/Térget Prediction Result arget % diff Prediction %
: ' b : : : diff

% A* - E (Pass) [100 o 98 ‘ 91

% A*- C (Merit) - [74 ' 73 50
1% A*-B 54 51 32

% A*/A (Dist) 35 32 13

Academic Value [0 ‘ . * 10.07 -0.97

Added _

Applied Value 0 -1.06 ~ J0.5

Added ;

Attalnment is below FFT 20 Benchmarks; however, the Benchmarks were generated from Teacher Assessed
Grades at GCSE which were elevated. The results show a significant drop since the Spring assessment pomt
‘highlighting the shift in grade boundaries Nationally. :

Key Stage 4 Key Performance Indicators

. Result
Progress8 ° |-0.21
Attainment 8~ |47.2
5+incEn/Ma  [47%
4+ inc En/Ma 66%

A8 English 9.6

A8 Maths’ 10 ,

A8 Ebacc . 14 g - ‘ -
A8 Open . 136 . ' . L

o, ' : -11-



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Significant pr(‘)gress was made between January mocks and actual results in the summer of 2023. The
subjects that added the most value to students attainment had the same features in common. They
-effectively tracked progress across the year, used data and question level analysis to inform teachingand
make decisive interventions, individualised programmes of intervention were provided to key students,
the course content and .assessment criteria were clearly, at least one member of the department was ,
either an examiner or had Exam board experience. ' '

- This cohort
'attendance
-timetable o
‘below show

also had an unusually large number of students that were either; educated offsrte had .
below 60%, were receiving significant support for Mental or Physical health or had a
f alternative provision. These students did not access lessons ‘or interventions. The table
s the key performance indicators if these 15 students were not included in the'school results.

Reséarch’ group Results
-0.05

Progress 8

Attainment 8 50.5

5+ inc En/Ma % |51

4+inc En/Ma % [71

A8 English- 5.1
A maths 5.3

A8 Ebacc " 5.0 -

A8 Open 4.9

’

As.a result of rigorous evaluation and the aforementloned points, the school s priorities for development this
year are as follows: . . -

To ensure the consistency in quality first teaching and- learnlng across all phases of the school
W|th particular focus on the Gildredge House lesson culture.

Consistent appllcatlon of phase-appropriate Assessment for Learning mcludmg feedback and
supports teachers to plan for effective Iearnmg and | progress of students.

.To ensure standardlsed assessment, moderation and analysis provide stakeholders W|th accurate

" and timely KS3 progress and attainment data.

To ensure the implementation of the new ‘through line’ curriculum and teaching strategies are
adapted to ensure all students can access our ambitious curriculum. :

Staff ensure Behaviour for Learning routines are cons:stently followed and th|s supports positive
attitudes and culture towards learning. :

The development of literacy across all areas of the curriculum.

Stakeholder voice provides opportunity for positive active participation in our community and.
education, contributing. to decmon making and sharing experiences so leaders and staff can
respond.

-12 -



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

M

The Academy had an operatuonal surplus of £381,305 in 2023 (£46,130 surplus on unrestricted fund less net
deficit on restricted general fund of £36,825, but excluding actuarial gains of £372,000)- and ‘is being
supported by the Educational and Skills' Funding Agency (ESFA). After making appropriate enquiries and
based on the confirmation of support from the ESFA, the Board of Governors has a reasonable expectation
~ that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable -
" future, For this reason the Board. of Governors continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
accounts. Further details regardlng the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of
accountlng policies.

Financial review o /

The vast majority of the Academy's income is obtained from the Department ‘for Education (DfE) via the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, (Revenue & Capital) the use of
which is restricted to particular educational purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the period
eended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of
Fmancual Activities. :

The Academy has received grants for Capital additions to refurbish and extend the Academy buildings. This ‘
amounted to £573,787 in'the period to 31 August 2023. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by
annual depreciation charges over. the useful Ilfe of the assets concerned as defined in the Academys
accounting policies.

1

In the year to 31 August 2023 total expenditure exclqdiné depreciation was £7,738,119, including £241,770
expenditure from the School Fund (see Note 17). This was funded by grants from the ESFA of £7,204,452 and .
other government grants of £113,905 (see Note 4}, School Fund income and other small grants of £224,749
(see Note 5), School Fund and other donations of £14,392 (Note 3)'and lettings and other income of £12,460
(Note 5). The excess of income over expenditure for the peraod (excluding the pension fund) was £9,305. The
closing balances on the various funds are shown in Note 17 on page 48 of the accounts.

At 31 August 2023, the net book value, of fixed assets was £11,316,103 and movements in tangible fixed
assets are shown in the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for, providing education and
the associated support services to the Students of the Academy.

The -land, buildings and other assets were transferred to the Academy upon incorporation. Land was -
valued at transfer of £750,000. Land and buildings further to refurbishment and extension are included in
the accounts at £10,941,134. Other'assets have ‘been included in the financial statements at cost less
depreciation.

13-
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Academy accounts for the surplus'.in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-
teaching staff. The surplus is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in the
financial statements

Key flnanclal pohcnes adopted or reviewed during the year include the Admissions Policy 2016-17, Articles of
Association, Registér of Interests of Head Teacher and Governors, Charging and Remissions Polncues Staff Pay
- and Progression Policy, Data Protection Policy.

Key documents created and reviewed:

Financial Regulations manual including: Anti-Corruption & Bribery Policy, Conflicts of Interest. Po'licy,
Whistle Blowing Policy, Risk Register, School Development Plan. :

- The Finance RegUIations Manual sets out the framework for financial management, including -financiall
responsibilities of the Trustees, Headteacher (as Accounting Officer), the Finance & Administration Director,
“SLT, Budget holders and other affected staff; as well as delegated authority for expenditure and procurement

protocols. ;

The audit functions of the Academy have been carried out by a Responsrble Ofﬁcer and External Audltors '
Price & Company, who have then submltted reports to the Audit / Enterprise Committee. '

The Governors have agreed a strategic approach to robust flnancual management and budgetary control
whilst continuing to invest in Human and Physical resources to sustain the Academys development
priorities. They have also taken a prudent approach to policy on Reserves in order to protect the
orgamsatron from commercial, polmcal and financial nsk .

This strategic plan is in line with and reinfdrces the objectives in the Academy's Funding Agreement.

. ‘ - . .
. Reserves policy | ) . .
The Governors review the reserve levels of the Academy at least annually. This review encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of
" reserves. The Governdrs, in following .ESFA guidance have agreed that a fixed asset fund should be
maintained, the value of which should match the net book value of fixed assets.
The balance of this fund therefore represents monies that have already been invested in fixed assets {net of
depreciation charged thereon) and hence this is not a fund that is available for future spending. The balance
-on the fixed asset fund at 31 August 2023 was £11,302,112. ' )
A capital fund is maintained representing capital -grants received from the ESFA. This is available in
accordance with the conditiens-of the grants, it must be used for capital expenditure. it is not therefore
available to support or to fund future running costs (revenue: expendlture)

. A general restricted fund is maintained representing grant fundin‘g received mainly from the ESFA to fund the
operating activities of the Academy. The fund was £1,393,250 in surplus at 31 August 2023 (2022:
£1,216,263). This surplus includes an amount of £372,000, relating to the actuarial gain on the pensmn
' schemes for the year. - ,
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

An unrestricted general fund is maintained, representing funds raised or generated by the Academy, to
which no restrictions a.pply,'beyond the general requirement that they be applied to the company's
educational and charitable objectives. The balance on this fund at 31 August 2023 was £262,391.

The Academy maintains .one further fund, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) fund. This
represents the company's share of the pension fund surplus or deficit, Calculated in accordance with the

_ requlrements of FRS 102. Further details of the calculations and assumptions underlymg the balance on th|s
fund are set out in the fmancual statements.

Investment policy
Investments must be made only after approval by the Full Governing Board

All investments must be recorded in sufficient detail to identify“the investment and to enable the ‘current
market value to be calculated. The information required will normally be the date of purchase, the cost and
a description of the investment, income receivable from the investment. .

Presently the Academy holds no such investments.

Principal risks and uncertainties

" The Governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in partlcular those relatung to
the specific teachlng, provision of facilities and other operatlonal areas of the Academy, and its finances. The
Governors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces especially in the
operational areas (e.g. in refation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school tnps) and in relation to
the control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vettlng of new
staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial. controls (see below) in order to
minimise risk. ' :

Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The
" Academy has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
following statement. The Governors are satisfied that systems are in place to mitigate exposure to the-major
risks.

Throughout the Covid pandemic the school closely followed all government guidelines in order to limit the

effect on our students’ education. School was always open for children of key workers, those with social care

arrangements, children with SEND or families in recelpt of free school meals (Pupll Premium Funding). Very .
clear procedures surrounding preventative steps to stop the spread of the virus were communlcated to all
staff, students and parents. Where necessary bubbles were introduced to ensure limited mixing of students.
This, alongside staggered/beglnnmg end to school day, and staggered break and lunch times ensured that
we d|d everythmg possible to limit lnfectuon :

At all times governors were satisfied that rigorous risk ‘assessments were undertaken and the board were
involved in carrying out and monitoring these assessments
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Financial and risk management objectives and policies y A
The Governors take into account the sum carried ‘forward for the year and the likelihood that central
government financial support will not increase in real terms, in coming years. Governors will keep the
position under constant review to ensure that they have sufficient income to run the Academy on an
efficient basis without affecting the quality of teaching and learning.

Financial risk is part of the Academy risk register and is regularly monitored and reviewed by Governors and
SLT. ‘ ‘ ’

The Academy’s financial-management procedures follows the Gildredge House Financial Regulations Manual
which has been written in consideration of the advice and guidance contained within the current Academies -
~ Financial Handbook. The Financial Regulations Manual and financial management procedures are regularly
reviewed and revised to minimise risk and ensure best practice to achieve best value principles.

Fundraising .
The ‘Governing Body is responsible for ensuring that the organisation operates within a responsible,
sustainable financial framework and that the organisation has adequate resources to carry out its work.

The Governors are committed to ensuring that fundraising activities are carried out in an ethical manner..

The guiding fundralsung principle is a simple one — we will only use techniques that we would be happy to be
used on ourselves. :

In doing so, the organisation will adhere to the following standards:
» The Governors will have regard to the Charity commissions publication ‘Charity Fundraising’ (CC20)

« Fundraising acnvmes carrled out by the school which will comply with all relevant laws.

« Any communications to the public made in the course of carrying out a fundraising act;vrty shaII be
truthful, non- deceptlve and GDR comphant

« All monies ralsed via fundraising activities will be for the stated purpose of the appeal and will
comply with the school’s stated mission and purpose. -

« All personal informatjon collected by the school operates within GDPR compliance and is
confidential and is not for sale or to be given away or disclosed to any third party without consent..

. Nobody- directly or indirectly employed by or volunteering for the school shall accept personal
commissions, bonuses or payments for fundraising activities on behalf of the organisation.

« No general solicitations shall be undertaken by telephone or door-to-door.

" o Fundraising activities should not be undertaken if they may be detrimental to-the good name or .
community standing of the school. :

* » Financial contributions will only be accepted from companies, organisations and individuals in I|ne‘
with Gildredge House financial regulatlons handbook

. Fundrausmg activities should not be undertaken if they will expose the organlsatlon to significant
financial risk. -

« Complaints wrlI be dealt wnth in accordance with the Charlty Commlsswns gurde CC20.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) °
~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Plans for future penods '
We prepared to welcomed the 11th cohort of Year 7 and Reception in September 2023 which were once
again oversubscribed. We were also looking forward to welcommg the 8th cohort of students into our.
Sixth Form (Year 12). ‘

We will continue to embed the ethos and vision of the school as it is proposed to growth. .

We will continue to focus, through the development of)the School Development Plan, on the four new
Ofsted areas of Quality of Education, Behaviour and Attitudes, Personal Development and Leadership and
Management. In these areas, we will continue to aspire to sustain the high quality of the ‘Good’ Ofsted
judgements made in November 2018 and bunld on these to push for an outstanding grade by the next
Ofsted |nspect|on

Auditor V T

In so far as the Governors are aware: :

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audlt information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that |nformat|on

A resolution proposmg that Price & Company be reappomted as audltor of the charitable company will be
put to the members.
! J

The Governors' report, mcorporatlng a strateglc report, was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as
the company dlrectors on ("{' .......... .'Im»Sand sngned on its behalf by: :

J Mace (ex officio) B . _ . CKearns
Vice-Chair of Governors and Trust Member ‘ Trust Member

. "Mace
“Trust Member S . , Trust Member

King

-4
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT . :
"FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 '

Scope of responsubnhty

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Gildredge House Free School

has an -effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
_ designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
" only reasonable and-not absolute assurance against material miss_tatement orloss. - '

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities' assighed to it in the funding
agreement between Gildredge House Free School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
" responsible for reporting to the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control. : :

Governance :

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in
the Statement of Governors' ResponS|b|I|t|es The Board of Governors has formally met four times during the
year. There have also been three Enterprlse Committee meetings-and three Education Committee meetings.
Attendance during the year at these. meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governors ' _ ' Meetings attended Out of possible
J Mace (Vice-Chair of Governors) 6 6
L Baxter ' 6 6
G Mace 6 -6
T Scott (Resigned 8 June 2023) 3 5
P Amos (Resigned 9 February 2023) 1 3
A Allart (Resigned 28 April 2023) 3 5
M Ashley Taylor 1 6
‘M Benzing ' - , . 5 6
G Freeman- ’ : 5 6
J Swann - ) 4 6 .
O Newman (Resigned 26 September 2022) 1 1
C Taylor (Resigned 25 October 2022) 0 1
C Bull (Ex-Officio) 5 6
.'R Thornhill (Chair of Governers) (Appointed 1 September 2023) v
Or A Lamprakis (Appointed 1 September 2022} E 6
L C_)wen {Appointed 25 March 2023) . -2 2
K Paradas (Appointed 1 September 2022) - B 6 6
J Searle {Appointed 1 September 2022) S 6
N Uzorkalon (Appointed 29 September 2022) 5 5
F Beckley (Appointed 20 October 2022) 5 5
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The Enterprise committee committee is a sub-committee.of the main Board of Governors. Attenda_nce at
meetings in the year was as follows: o

Governors ‘ . ‘ ’ . ° Meetings attended Out of possible

1 Mace (Vice-Chair of Governors)
T Scott (Resigned 8 June 2023)
P Amos (Resigned 9 February 2023)
M Ashley Taylor '
G Freeman-
- C Bull (Ex-Officio)
R Thornhill (Chair of Governers) (Appomted 1 September 2023)
Dr A Lamprakis (Appomted 1 September 2022) . ] .
_F Beckley (Appointed 20 October 2022) : ‘ ' E 1 . 1
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The Education commlttee committee is a sub committee of the main Board of Governors. Attendance at
meetmgs in the year was as follows: :

Governors ’ : Meetings attended Out of possible

J Mace (Vice-Chair of Governors)

L Baxter '

G Mace

A Allart (Resigned 28 April 2023)

M Benzing '

JSwann ' .

C Taylor (Resigned 25 October 2022) .

C Bull (Ex-Officio) . o . »

R Thornhill (Chalr of Governers) (Appomted 1 September 2023y ‘
L Owen (Appointed 25-March 2023)-

K Paradas (Appointed 1 September 2022)

J Searle (Appointed 1 September 2022)

N Uzorkalon (Appointéd_~29 September 2022)

F Beckley (Appointed 20 October 2022)
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Review of value for money : .

As Accounting Officer the Head Teacher has responS|b|I|ty for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Governors where value for. money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where available.

Ofsted Good has been a_chieved by careful recruitment and deployment of teaching-staff to maximise
expertise both inside the classroom and outside in the school’s extensive extra-curricular ‘Twilight’
programme. Similarly, careful recruitment and deployment of support staff to maximise expertise has
. allowed for evolution and development of departments and individual roles in order to support the growing
community. The school has worked with the ICT provider to ensure best value for money with the increased -
IT provision, ‘which will provide the school with income generation opportunities, as well as supporting the
quality of delivery of the curriculum.

]

The purpose of the system of internal control :
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them effluently, effectlvely and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Gildredge
House Free School for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August. 2023 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board
of Governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Governors.

The risk and control framework ) _
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregatlon of duties and a system of delegatlon
and accountability. In particular it includes: - ,

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and perlodlc financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Governors; .

« regular reviews by the Full Governing Board of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; >

« setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guudelmes

« delegation of authority and segregation of duties; ,

« identification and management of risks. : : ‘

.

“The Board of Governors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided:

» to appoint an internal auditor, Knilljames chartered accountants. The internal audit was done 02/08/23.
No critical inefficiencies were identified. :
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The external auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the Academy Trust's financial systems The external auditor reports to the Board of Governors on the
operatlon of the.systems of controI and on the discharge of the financial respon5|b|I|t|es of the Board of-
Governors

Review of effectiveness - :
As Accounting Officer the Head Teacher has respon5|b|hty for reviewing the effectrveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the external auditor; ,
« the financial management and governance self-assessment process.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Full Governing Board and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contmuous

improvement of the system is in place.

e Approved by order of the Board of Governors on IV'DECQ‘)'LB and S|gned onits behalf by

JMace | S
Vice-Chair of Governors -
Trust Member

p . ‘ . . ) , . A . \
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

As Accounting,Ofﬁcer of Gildredge House Free School | have considéred my responsibility to notify the
" Academy Trust Board of Governors and the Education and Skills  Funding Agency (ESFA) of material
irregularify, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding

agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
" consideration | have had due regard to the reqmrements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2016

Il cqnfirm that | and the Academy Trust's Bbard'of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
‘funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

"I confirm that no instances of material. i'rregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been .
discovered to date. If any instances are-identified after the date of this statement these will be notlfled to -
the Board of Governors and ESFA. '
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Governors (who act as trustees for Gildredge House Free School and are also the directors of Gildredge
House Free School for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Governors' report and

the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 publlshed by the Education

and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting’ Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted.
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the
Governors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that théy give a true and fair view of the
" state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and appllcatlon of resources,
mcIudmg its income and expendlture for that perlod

In preparing these accounts, the Governors are required to:

« select suitable accountm’g policies and then apply them consistently;

« observe the methods and prmuples in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023;

+ make judgements and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

_ departures disclosed and explained.in the accounts; and

‘o prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is |nappropr|ate to. presume that the charitable

company will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
-explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
“ position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies

Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for - -

taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
~f|nanC|a| and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management They are.also responsible for ensurmg that grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been -
applied for the purposes intended. :

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
_included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of accounts may differ from Iegislation in-other jurisdictions. :

o

Vlce Chair of Governors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

~

Opinion : . . .
We have audited the accounts of Glldredge House Free School for the year ended 31 August 2023 which’
comprise the statement of-financial activities, the balance sheet the statement of cash flows and notes to
- the accounts,” including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
'Reporting Standard- 102 'The Financial' Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. i

t

In our opinion the accounts
-~ give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affalrs as at 31 August 2023 and of its-
- incoming resources and appllcatlon of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year

then ended; , . . .

- -have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
Practice '

- have been prepared i in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023. :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audlt in accordance with International Standards on Audltmg (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable "law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the accounts' section of our report. We are'independent of the Academy
Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audlt evrdence we have obtained'is sufﬂcrent and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. -

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Governors' use of the gomg concern basis of
“accounting in the preparation of the fmancnal statemerits is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a penod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorlsed for issue. . :

Our responsnblhtles and the responsibilities of the Governors with respect to going concern are descrlbed in
the relevant sections of this report. ' ] g ' .
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[

Other information.

The other information comprises the |nformat|on included in the annual report other than the accounts and - -

" our auditor's report thereon. The Governors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our. opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent

’. . . . S
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our.
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material -

misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise’ to a material misstatement in the
accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, ‘we conclude that there is -a materlal
misstatement of this other information, we are requnred to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other nﬁatters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- - the information given in the ‘Governors' report including the incorporated strategic report for the. -

, financial year for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and
- the Governors' report.including the incorporated strateglc report has been- prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception . o
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we have not identified matenal misstatements in the Governors' report, including the . .

incorporated strateglc report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companles Act 2006,

reqwres us to report to you if, in our oplnlon

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relatlon to which the Companles Act 2006

reqwres us to report to you.if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept,-or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- . the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; dr

- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration épecified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsnbllltles of Governors

As explained more fully in the statement of Governors' responsnbllmes the Governors are responsnble for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the Governors are
responsible for assessing the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern -and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governors
either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. -
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- Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whethér due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a ,material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these.accounts:

Irregularities, including fraud are lnstances of non-compliance with Iaws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsubllltles outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
. including fraud, is detailed below: :

e In planning our audit we assess. the risks of material 'misstatement including fraud, based on our
discussion with management, evaluatlon of the internal controls in place, and identify critical laws and

~ regulations.

o During our detailed audit work we review transactions and documentatlon reIevant to the inherent and
specific risks we identified at the planmng stage and which could indicate fraud or non- compllance with
laws and regulations. - : -

" During our audit procedures we extend the scope of our testing where our planning indicated there was .
an increased risk of fraud including management override of controls. ‘

~» We also considered and reviewed the procedures which management have in place to detect and
identify ‘any instances of fraud or non-compliance with fraud and regulations. The procedures in place
were discussed in detail with management and walkthrough tests were undertaken where appropriate.

We obtamed an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the entity and
determined that the most srgnlflcant are those that relate. to: :

« Children’s Act.2004. The guidelines set out in this act requires anyone who works with children
(whether in an educational or non- educatlonal setting) to know how a child should be looked after in
the eyes of the law.

» The Department of Education Statutory policies for schools and academy trusts. This ‘covers all
regulatlons set out by the department of education mcludrng Admissions policy, Premises
management, Health and safety, Lesson requirements, Data protection, Teachers pay, Complalnts
and discipline procedures and child protection policies. :

o The Academies Financial Handbook has the framework for the preparation and presentation of the
academy's financial statements for the year :
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We assessed the risks of material misstatement in respect of fraud as follows:

« Enqguiries were made to those in management and in charge.of governance.
Analytical procedures were used as costs are expected to remain fairly consistent due to the nature
. of the Academy and having been at full capacity for the last several years.
. Walkthrough tests were performed on key areas deemed most susceptible-to musstatement by the
audit team. : ‘
" o Board minutes were rewewed

+ Client Journal entries were tested for approprlateness

A further description of our responsnbllltles is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s ‘'website at:
https //www frc.org. uk/audltorsrespon5|bllltles This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report . ‘

This report is made solely.to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

" charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility. to

'anyone other than the charitable.company and the charitable company 3 members asa body, for our audit
work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. . .

Mr Michael Neilan BSc FCA CcTA (Senier Statutory Auditor) \
For and on behalf of Price & Company . o Vo Dy MB

Chartered Accountants . R
Statutory Auditor ‘ : E - - 30-32 Gildredge Road
' A ‘ ' : Eastbourne
East Sussex
BN21 4SH
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GILDREDGE
HOUSE FREE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

In accordance with the terms .of our engagement letter dated 15. September 2014 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Gildredge House Free School during the period 1 September
2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
g transactlons conform to the authorities which govern them.

This' report is made solely to Gildredge House Free School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might sta_te to the Gildredge House Free School
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
_permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Gildredge House Free
School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we. have formed.

Respective responsubllmes of Gildredge House Free School s accounting officer and the reportmg
accountant . . :

The accountlng officer is responS|bIe under the requwements of Glldredge House Free School’s fundmg'
agreement with the Secretary’ of State for Education dated 22 August 2013 and the Academy Trust
"Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes mtended by Parliament and the fmancral transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them. ‘ o . '

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our éngagement letter and the
_ requirements of the.Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has
‘come to our attention iri carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities WhICh govern them. :

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Audltors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter. :

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations-in order to provide us wnth suffluent approprlate evidence to express a negatlve conclusion on
regularity.

- A limited assurance engagement is more. limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evudence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy Trust s income and expendlture : :
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GILDREbGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

INDEPEvNDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO GILDREDGE
HOUSE FREE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 '

" The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes a review of the design and implementation of the
Academy Trust's internal controls and review processes on regularity, supported by detailed tests on samples
of costs incurred by the Academy Trust and specific transactions identified from our review.

Conclusion :

In the course of our work nothmg has come to our attention whlch suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not
been_applied to purposes mtended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
_authorltles which govern them

Reporting Accountant
Price & Compan)y

30 32 Gildredge Road
Eastbourne

" East Sussex

BN21 4SH

Dated: QOOQCWW%'LZ
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" GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
~ funds  General Fixed-asset 2023 2022
‘Notes . f S £ . £ . £
‘Income and endowments from: ‘ ’ : ' _
Donations and capital grants 3 14392 ‘- 573,787. 588,17_9 ' 68,805
Charitable activities: . ; S '
- Funding for educational operations  4- - - 7,318,357 - 7,318,357 6,660,706
Other trading activities ‘ 5 - 12,460 224,749 - 237,209 127,085
Investments : 6 . 19,278 - - 19,278 756
Total s Coo 46,130 7,543,106 573,787 8,163,023 6,857,352
" Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: » _ o
- Educational operations . we '8 - 7,738,119 415,599 8,153,718 6,976,612
Total \ 7 - 7,738,119 415599 -8153,718 6,976,612
Net income/(expenditure) - - : 46,130  (195,013) 158,188 - 19,305 - (119,260)
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit : . -
pension schemes 4 19 - 372,000 - .372,000 1,781,000
Net' movement in funds : . 46,130 176,987 © 158,188 381,305 1,661,740
Reconciliation of funds A . - .
Total funds b_rought forward 216,261 1,216,263 11,143,924 12,576,448 10,914,708
Total funds carried forward 262,391 1,393,250 11,302,112 12,957,753 12,576,448
: =
General restricted fund made up of: '
Restricted income fund 1,132,250
Pension reserve fund 261,000 -
1,393,250
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
- INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Comparative year information 4 Unrestricted . Restricted funds: . Total -

Year ended 31 August 2022 funds General Fixed asset 2022

. . : Notes’ £ £ £ T
income and endowments from: . o .
Donations and capital grants - - 3 23,477 - 45,328 68,805
Charitable activities: T < ' o

- Funding for educational operations 4 . - 6,660,706 - 6,660,706
Other trading activities ' 5 9,340 117,745 ' - . 127,085
Investments 6 ' 756 . - : - © 756
Total , 33,573 6,778,451 45,328 6,857,35;
éxpenditufg on:

Charitable activities: R .

- Educational operations 8 - - - 6,605,996, 370,616. 6,976,612
Total , : o ’ , 7 . - 6,605,996 370,616 6,976,612
Net income/(expenditure) ) . 33,573 " 172,455  (325,288) . (119,260) ~
Other recognised gains/(loséés)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension K : : : .

. schemes . 19 - 1,781,000 © . - 1,781,000
Net movement in funds . . : 33,573 1,953,455 (325,288) 1,661,740 -
Reconciliation of funds ' .- . ‘

Total funds brought forward | o ‘ 182,688 (737,192) 11,469,212 10,914,708
Total funds carried forward . ' - 216,261 1,216,263 11,143,924 12,5_76,448
General restricted fund made up of: ' L ‘ ' \
Restricted income fund ‘ . ' 1,247,263 '
Pension reserve fund a o X (31,000)

1,216,263
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GILDREDGE HOUSE. FREE SCHOOL

BALANCE SHEET ‘
_ AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

.

 Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12

Current assets

Debtors’ . 13
Cash at bank and in hand o

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year : ‘ 14

Net current assets”
Total assets less current liabilities’

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year . 15

Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme asset/(liability)

Defined benefit pension scheme
asset/(liability) 19

"Total net assets
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds E 17
- Fixed asset funds :

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

-Unrestricted incofne funds h 17

Total funds

2023
11,316,103
". 304,395
1,949,562

2,253,957

(628,753)
1,625,204

12,941,307
(244,554)
12,696,753

261,000

12,957,753

011,302,112
1,132,250

261,000 .

12,695,362

262,391

12,957,753

2022.

£

185,060 .

1,698,997

1,884,057

(458,781)

£

11,182,172

. 1,425,276

12,607,448

12,607,448

'~ (31,000)

12,576,448

11,143,924
" 1,247,263

(31,000)
12,360,187

216,261

12,576,448
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL -

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The accounts set out on pages 30 to 57 were approved by the’ Board of Governors and authonsed for issue

J Mace. ‘
_Vice-Chair of Governors : '
a Company registration number 08436285
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes
‘Cash flows from operating activities’
Net cash (used in)/provided by. operating
' . 20

activities .

Cash flows from investing activities
" Dividends, interest and rents from
investments '

- Capital grants from DfE Group
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

" Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities '

' Cash flows from financing activities
‘Advance of long term loan

Net cash provided by/(us;ed in) financing acfivities

Net'increa'se,iri cash and cash equivalents in the
* . reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the y;'-zar )

‘Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Rélating to:
Bank and cash bglances
Bank overdrafts

2023
£ £
(75,073)
19,278
573,787
- {549,530)
43,535
271,727
271,727 .
240,189
1,698,997
1,939,186
1,949,562

. (10,376)

. 2022
£ £
- 516,277
756
45,328
(68,011)
(21,927)
494,350
. 1,204,647
' 1,698,997
1,698,997
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.1

1.2

13

_'Accounting policies

- Gjldredge House Free School is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is

given on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the Governors' Report.

-

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation : .
The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared

" under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in

the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of |
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Chantles SORP (FRS
102)) the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Gildredge House Free School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.-

Going concern .

" As shown on the SOFA on page 26, the Academy incurred an operatlonal deficit of £76,140 in 2023 and

is being supported by the Educational and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

The. Governors assess whether the.use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether'there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the charitable company to continue as a going.concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect
of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and,after
making appropriate enquiries and based on the confirmation of support from the ESFA, the Board of
Governors have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no materlal uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountmg in preparing the flnanual statements

Income :
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has ent|tlement to the funds, the
recelpt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

" Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in'the relevant funds on the.
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related ‘conditions
there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in
creditors as deferred income until the performance -related conditions are met. Where entltlement

~ occurs before income is recelved thei mcome is accrued
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 -

1

14

.Accounting policies (Continued)

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which
it is receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as

- a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent

amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which .-
they are expended.

Donations .
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis "(wh_ere there are no performance-related conditions)

‘where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income .
Other income, including the h|re of faCI|ItIES is recognised in the period it is recelvable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services. :

< .
Donated goods, fac;lmes and services .
Goods donated for resale are.included at fair value, bemg the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other tradiné activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged aga'inst ‘Income from

.other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not .
recognised in the accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other

trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
" case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a

corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the

“useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust’s accounting policies. -

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a Iegal or constructive obligation to transfer economic beneflt
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement; and
the amount of the obligation can be measured rehab|y

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of edch activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and ‘shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable
to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one

. activity and support costs which are not attributable.to a single activity are apportioned between those

activities'on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of A
time spent, and deprec:atlon charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
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"' GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 '

15

Accounting policies (Confinued) .
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expendlture on raising funds "
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for |ts chantable purposes

‘and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

-

Charitable aetivities :
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs reIatmg to the governance of the Academy Trust apportroned to charitable actlvmes

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation .
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tanglble f|xed assets and are carrled at cost net of
deprecuatlon and any provision. for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acqmred with the aid of specific grants, either from the

government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
that reduire the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixéd asset
fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such

" assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

bepreciation is-provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at ra'te's calculated to

write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold property ' "~ 50 vyears

" Computer equipment .. . . 3 years ‘ ) 5

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10 years

Assets in the k:oursevof construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.
. _ ) . :

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate -

‘that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value

of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of financial activities. N
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting pblicies (Continued)

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date asa result of a past

event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount

of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy

Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced paymerits for .
the goods of services it must provide.’ ‘ '

. Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

AN

- Financial instruments : _
“The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and

financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basjs are as follows.
Financial assets ‘ . : .

Trade and.other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt mstruments measured at
amortlsed cost Prepayments are not fmancual instruments. ' _

Cash at bank is classified as a basic ﬁnancial instrument and is measured at face v_alr‘Je.

Financial llabllltleS

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised -
cost. Taxation and social securlty are not included in the financial mstruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place

19

-1.10

and there is an obllgatlon to deliver services rather than cash or another fmanc:al instrument.

Taxation '

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received vl/ithin categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income of gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes. :

Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are:provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme .

('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined beneflt schemes and the

assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust
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'GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘ Accounting policies (Continued)

The TPS is-an unfunded scheme and contributions are. calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially
level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Attuary based on quadrennial valuations-using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS
is an .unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers.

‘Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting. purposes and the

contributions are recognised in the period to which they relate.

N4

"The ,LGI’S is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the

Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method -and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate -of return on a high- quality corporate bond of

" equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuatlons are obtained at least triennially

1.11

and are updated at each balance-sheet date: The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are .

‘the current service costs -and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and

curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit -
liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost
on the defined benéfit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying
the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets-and the actual
return on the sc'her'ne‘assets1 is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

. Unrestricted income funds represent those resources whlch may be used towards meeting any of the

charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by'the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Fundlng Agency/Department for

* Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

-Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiente

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. ‘
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

Critical accountlng estimates and assumptlons

The Academy: Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultmg accountmg
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrymg amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are dlscussed below. . o

The presenf value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a..
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension . liability. Furthermore  a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions

" liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capita’l grants . . _ _
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total

funds © funds 2023 2022
Y £ £
Capital grants » . 573,787 573,787 45,328
Other-donations ‘ ] ' ’ 14,392 - 14,392 23,477

14,392 573,787 588,179 68,805
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. GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'AUGU'ST 2023

4 Funding for the Acédemy frust's c.hari_table activities

- DfE/ESFA grants -
General annual grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants:
- Pupil premium -
- Othér§

Other government grants’
- Local authority grants

t

Total funding

5 Other trading activities

Lettings income
“Trips and activities income’

6  Investmentincome .

‘Short term deposits

- Restricted -

Total

£

Unrestricted Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
- 6,374,845 ’6,374,845 5,929,477
- A 297,392 297,392 335,121
- 532,215 532,215 263,850
- 7,204,452 7,204,452 6,527,448
- 113,905 113,905 133,258
- 7,318,357 - 7,318,357 6,660,706
Unrestricted - Restricted‘ o Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£- £ £
12460 . - 12,460 . 9,340
- 224,749 224,749 1\17,745
12,460 224,749 237,209 127,085
Unrestriéted - Restricted Total - Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ ' £ . £
19,278 - 19,278 756
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

'GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

. 7‘.

Expenditure -

. Non-pay expenditure Total ~.Total
Staff costs  Premises © 2023 2022
£ £ I
Academy's educational operations . ,
- Direct costs - '4,645,,467 . 5,377,072 4,745,451
- Allocated support costs . . 869,143 1,436,340 2,776,646 2,231,161
5514,610 1,436,340 18,153,718 6,976,612 .
‘Net income/(expenditure} for the year includes: 2023 12022
. : o ’ B £
Fees payable to auditor for: - T
- Audit . ' 4,350 | 4,350
- Other services 2,000 2,000
Operating lease rentals 6,097 , ' 8,218
. Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 415,599 370,616
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability {2,000) 23,000
' Charitable activities .
- 2023 2022
: . £ £
All from restricted funds: .
- Direct costs - educational operations '5,377,072 . 4,745,451
Suppbrt' costs - educational operations ' 2,776,646 2,23},161‘
8,153,718 6,976,612
Analysis of costs 2023 2022
£ £
Direct costs )
Teaching and educational support staff costs 4,652,247 - 4,372,730
Staff-development 22,033 29,213
Educational supplies and.services 319,377 - 226,176
Examination fees 141,645 51,147
Other direct costs 241,770 66,185
5,377,072 4,745,451
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GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023.

~1

. Charitable activities (Continued)

Support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Technology costs

Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning ‘

Energy costs

Rent.and rates

Insurance

Security and transport *

'Catering

Interest and finance costs
Other support costs
Governance tosts

Staff costs

Wages and salaries

Social security costs.

Operai;ing costs of defined benefit pensioh schemes

Staff costs
Supply staff costs,
Staff development and other staff costs.

Total staff expenditure

939,168

869,143
415,599 370,616
162,471 113,685
24,048 9,690
781,664 277,848
. 23,445 17,346
‘ 111,907 125,500
77,090 67,278
26,635 23,427
7,668 12,563
158,668 . 155,845 -
~ (2,000) 23,000
© 90,269 68,971
30,039 26,224
2,776,646 . 2,231,161
.. 2023 2022
T £
" 4,046,026 3,785,488
382,043, 352,191
834,000 - 1,075,954
5,262,069 5,213,633
252,541 78,366
128,813 . 49,112
5,543,423 5,341,111

-43-



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) : :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 '

9 Staff costs (Continued)

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:
: 2023 2022
Number Number
Teachers ' S © 59 ., 64
Administration and support | : 73 71
Management ‘ : 8 7
140 - 142
ngher paid staff :
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludmg employer pensmn costs} exceeded
£60,000 was:
2023 12022
Number Number
£60,001 - £70,000 2 -
" £70,001 - £80,000 . 3 4
1 . -

£110,001 - £120,000

Key management personnel

" The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Governors and the senior
leadership team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions) received by key management personnel for their-services to the Academy Trust -~
was £694,845 (2022 : £543,690). : :
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10. ~ Governors' remuneration and expenses

The Head Teacher and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the ‘roles of Head Teacher and staff, and not in respect of their services as
Governors. Other Governors .did not receive any payments, other than expenses from the Academy
Trust in respect of thelr role as Governors. ’

- The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

- Craig Bull (Head 'Teacher‘andStaff Governor):
Remuneration £110,000 - £120,000 (2022: £70,000 - £80,000)- A
Employer's pension contributions paid £25,000 - £30,000 {2022: £15,000 - £20,000) -

Craig was employed in December 2022.

* Chloe Taylo‘_r (Staff Governor):
Remuneration £5,000 - £10,000 (2022 : £40,000 - £50,000)
Employer's pension contributions paid £Nil - £5,000 (2022: £10,000 - £15,000)

Chloe.'resigned as staff governor on 25/10/22. .
During the period ended 31 August 2023, training and other expenses relating to all the trustees
totallmg £1,184 (2022: £N|I) were paid directly to third parties. :

One or more of the Governors has been paid- remuneration or has received other. benefits from an
employment with the Academy Trust. The Head Teacher and other staff Governors only receive
remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Head Teacher and staff
members under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of their services as Governors.

11 Governors' and officers' insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection -Arrangement (RPA), -
an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy Trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the
Governors and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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12 Tangible fixed assets ' _
S Freehold Computer

Total '

Fixtures,
property equipment fittings and
) equipment .
A B 3 £
Cost ) o )
At 1 September 2022 : - 12,635,523 917,008 1,269,114 14,821,645 .
Additions - - "+ 401,590 - 72,609 75331 549,530
At 31 August 2023 . ‘ o 13,037,113~ 989,617 1,344,445 15,371,175 -
Depreciation ' ] - . .
At 1 September 2022 : : 1,850,237 867,683 921,553 = 3,639,473
Charge for the year X o o 245,742 35,413 ‘134,444 - 415,599
At 31 August 2023 ' o 2,095,979 903,096 . 1,055,997 4,055,072 ° -
“Net book value — . :
At 31 August 2023 — 10,941,134 86,521 288,448 11,316,103
At 31 August 2022 - | | 10,785,286 49,325 347,561 11,182,172 .
13 Debtors , L '
2023 2022
£ £
' Trade debtors 441 © 13,395
VAT recoverable 223,129 75,786
Other debtors . 48,129 - 56,323
Prepay'mentsand accrued income ’ 32,696 - 39,556
304,395 185,060
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14 . Creditors: amounts falliﬁg due within one year . : . :
' . 2023 . 2022

£ £
Government loans s . IR ‘ 27,173 . -
. Bank overdrafts : .. ’ : . 10,376 ' -
‘ Trade creditors . B 282,046, . 200,397
- Other taxation and social security - 180,174 - 182,311
Other creditors . o : o '58,319 - 51,412
Accruals and deferred‘income . - . 70,665 24,661
" 628,753 - 458,781
+15 - Creditors: amounts falling due-after more than one year ,
‘ ' 2023 ' 2022
£ £
Government-loans L ‘ ' .7 244554 2
N S 2023 - 202
Analysis of loans _ o - ' ' , S - f
Wholly repayable within ten yéérs v ‘ Lo . 271,727 CoL -
Less: included in current liabilities - (27,173) -
Amounts included above : ' . L 244554 s
]
Loan maturity _ | .
Debt-due in one year or less ) . " 27,173 ° -
Due in more than one year but not more than two years 27,173 . -
Due in more than two years but not more than five years - - : 81,518 ' -
Due in more than five years Lo 135,863 : -
i 271,727 --
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16 Deferred income . A ' s | . 2023 2022

£ £
Deferred income is included within: . .
Creditors due within one year : , " 45,065 13,033
Deferred income at 1 September 2022 - . " 13,033 161,866
Released from previous years - ' B (13,033)- (161,866)
Amount; deferred in the year _ : ‘ 45,065 | © 13,033
‘Deferred income at 31 August 2023 . ' . 45,065 13,033

i)

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds in advance of £45,065 for school tnps ‘
and activities that will take place in late 2023 to 2024. .

17 Funds . .

" Balance at . ' " Gains, Balance at
1 September ' lossesand = .31 August
' 2022 . Income Expenditure transfers 2023
, £ £ E £ E

Restricted general funds , : : X ‘
General Annua! Grant (GAG) 1,195,703 6,374,845 (6{472,837) - 1,097,711
Pupil premium - 297,392 (297,392) -
Other DfE / ESFA grants . -~ . - 532,215 (532,215) A -
Other government grants ‘ - 113,905. (113,905) - -
Other restricted funds - 51,560 224,749 (241,770) S 34,539 .
Pension reserve , (31,000) - (80,000) 372,000 261,000

7

1,216,263 * 7,543,106  (7,738,119) 372,000 1,393,250

Restricted fixed asset funds . .
DfE group capital grants 11,143,924 573,787 (415,599) - 11,302,112

Total restricted funds - 12,360,187 8,116,893  (8,153,718) 372,000 12,695,362

Unrestricted funds : ‘ :
General funds K 216,261- . 46,130 - - .. 262,391

Total funds 12,576,448 8,163,023  (8,153,718) 372,000 12,957,753
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17

Funds (Continued)

The s.pecific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy Trust. Under
the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the

. amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

Pupil Premium are additional funds to support dnsadvantaged puplls and close the attainment gap

- between them and their peers.

- Other DfE/ESFA grants are for particular pu rp‘oses within the Academy Trust's educational' o'perations.

Other government grants include money recelved from the Local Authorlty in support of drsadvantaged
pupils. .

. Other restricted funds include monies in regards to trios and activities.

The costs and income assaociated with the defined benefit pension scheme have been recorded in the
restricted general fund. Staff costs are paid from this fund, including contributions to the LGPS, and the

~ pension Ilablllty has therefore been aligned with those costs.

- DfE/ESFA capltal grants represents .capital monies received during the perlod from the ESFA. ‘These

monies had all been spentiin the period. Depreciation relating to capltal items bought with these’ grants
is charged to this fund as it occurs. : :

Unrestricted funds represents funds generated via activities such as from school uniform sales, bank
interest receivable and-donations. The surplus on this fund at the end of the financial period and after
the transfer from other restricted funds was £262,391 and can be used at the discretion of the
Governors to meet the charitable objectives of the Academy Trust. :

The Acad'em'y Trust GAG -fund is carrying a net surplus of £1,052,783 (2022: £1,195,703) on restricted

. general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds. Gildredge House has generally

performed well in their control of operational income over expenditure in the financial year 2022/23.
With an operation surplus £1,087,322 excluding depreciation and pensions liabilities. .
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.

Gains,
1 September - lossesand . 31 August A
2021 Income Expenditure  transfers ,2022
L £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds . . o ' . )
General Annual Grant (GAG) . 738,808 - 5,929,477 (5,472,582) o 1,195,703
Pupil premium ‘ B ) - 335,121 (335,121) - -
Other DfE / ESFA grants - - 262,850 (262,850) - -
Other government grants - - 133,258 (133,258) - -
Other restricted funds . - . 117,745 - (66,185) ‘ - 51,560
" Pension reserve 'D _ (1,476,000) - (336,000) 1,781,000 . (31,000)
(737,192) 6,778,451  (6,605,996) 1,781,000 1,216,263
Restricted fixed asset funds , .' ' .
' DfE group capital grants. - 11,469,212 145,328 (370,616) - 11,143,924
Total restricted funds 710,732,020 6,823,779 (6,976,612) 1,781,000 12,360,187
Unrestricted funds . .
General-funds . 182,688 33,573 - - 216,261
Total funds =~ = . 10,914,708 6,857,352 (6,976,612) 1,781,000 12,576,448

‘Funds (Coﬁtinued)

ACorhp:-'Jra’tivel information.in respecf of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at

" Balance at’
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.18 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 arev
" represented by: ‘

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
‘ t L egen-e
- Non-current liabilities
" Pension scheme asset

Total net assets

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
" represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Pension.scheme Iia‘biIity\

Total net assets

Pension and similar obligations

Restricted funds:

Total ..

Unrestricted _
Funds General  Fixed asset . Funds
£ £ . £ £
- - 11,316,103 11,316,103
1,121,707 1,132,250 .- 2,253,957
(614,762) - (13,991) (628,753)
(244,554) - - (244,554) .
- 261,000 . - 1 261,000
262,391 1,393,250 ‘11,302,112 112,957,753
Unrestricted Restricted fuﬁds: Total
Funds General  Fixed asset Funds
£ B _ £
, - o= 11,182,172 . 11,182,172
216,261 1,667,796 1,884,057
- (420,533) . (38,248) (458,781) *
- (31,000) S (31,000)
216,261 1,216,263 11,143,924 12,576,448

The Acaderﬁy’Tr‘ust‘s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension

»

. Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by East Sussex County Council. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS to the .

' penod ended 31 March 2019.

There were no outstandmg or prepaid contributions at either the beglnmng or the end of the financial

year.
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Pension and similar o'bligations (Continued)
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contrlbutory, deflned benefit scheme, governed by '
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulataons 2014. Membershlp is automatic for teachers in academy -
trusts. All teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS fgllowmg enrolment. :

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

. Valuatlon of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
. The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial prmcuples conducts aformal actuarial review of

the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the

level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the -
value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the
TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was publlshed by the Department"

for Educatlon on 5 March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subseduent consultation are:
« employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (mcIudmg a 0 .08% administration
levy) - ’
« total scheme liabilities (pensmns currently in payment and the estimated cost of future
beneflts) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated
future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
.« the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional |nvestment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumedto be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valdation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £643,027 (2022: £608,014).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution

-scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the mformatlon available on the scheme.
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee- administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates-for future years are
18.9% for employers and employee rates vary accordmg to salary Ievels

,

“Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that in the
. event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by

the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reafflrmed its commitment to the guarantee with a parliamentary minute
pubhshed on GOV.UK. :

Total_contributions made o ' o .. 2023 2022
' ’ £ B
Employer's contributions S y ‘ 176,000 - 183,000
*Employees' contributions . . S . 59,000 60,000
Total contributions - o 2350000 243,000
Principal actuarial assnmptions : A , © 2023 . 2022
o ' ' % %
Rate of increase in salaries . i ‘ ‘ 3.90 . 295
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/mflatlon S o 2.90 2,95’
Discount rate for scheme liabilities . ' - . 530 4.25

Expected return on assets ] ‘ -1.77 1.43

‘The current mortahty assumptions.include sufficient allowance for future. |mprovements in mortallty

rates The assumed life expectatrons on retlrement age 65 are:

2023 2022
. "~ Years Years
. Retiring today _ : ' o
-Males ~ - ' * . . 209 212
- Females o A . S 238 23.8
Retiring in 20 years : SRR : . S '
-Males - - . ' : 21.9 221

- Females o < v . . 25.3 ©25.1
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19 Pension and similar obligations (Continded)

~ Sensitivity analysis
Defined benefit pension scheme net asset/(liability)

. Scheme assets . A :
Scheme obligations ) . ,

Net asset/(liability) o N

The Academy Trusg“s share of the assets in the scheme

Equities

Bonds

Property
"Other assets

Total market value of assets

’

The.actual return on' sgheme assets was £236,000 (2022: £28,000).

Amount,rec'ognised_in the statement of financial activities * - | "

Current service cost
_ Interest cost’

- Total operating charge

2023

2022

£ £
2,571,000 2,110,000
©(2,310,000)  (2,141,000)
-261,000  (31,000)

© 2023 2022

~ Fair value Fair value
£ £
1,987,000 1,556,000
363,000 .. 318,000
184,000 184,000
37,000 52,000
2,571,000 2,110,000
12023 2022
B - £
260,000 497,000
(2,000) 23,000
258,000 520,000

-54-



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

19 'Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

Changes in the bresent value of defined benefit obli'gations“ ' ' - 2023

. * . ' £

At 1September 2022 ' : © . 2,141,000
Current service cost A ‘ . I 258,000
Interest cost . - ' : o : A ' ) 92,000
Employee contributions , . . ' . L 59,000
Actuarial gain - o : ' , (230,000)
Benefits paid o ' {10,000)

. At31August2023 ' | . 2,310,000

Chénges in the fair value of the Academy Trust's sllwalre of scheme assets

2023
£
At 1 September 2022 Lo . T 2,110,000
. Interestincome - : ‘ o 94,000
Actuarial (gain)/loss . ' : : , 142,000
- Employer contributions _ . S ' 176,000
"Employee contributions - ~ X ' 59,000 -
Benefits paid ' s , ‘ (10,000)
At 31 August 2023 - o - 2,571,000
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20 Reconcullatlon of net mcome/(expendlture) to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 | 2022
, “Notes £ £
" Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the
statement of financial activities) . 9,305 {119,260)
Adjusted for: .
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income © (573,787) (45,328)
Investment income receivable . . 6 (19,278) (756)
Defined benefit pension costs less contrubutmns payable - 19 82,000 313,000
Defined beneﬂtpensnon scheme finance (income)/cost o 19. (2,000) 23,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 415,599 370,616
{(Increase) in debtors (119,335)  (69,121)
Increase in creditors 132,423 ] 444'126
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (75,073) 516,277
21 Analysis of changes in net funds ) .

\ 1September  Cashflows 31 August
12022 2023

£ £ £

Cash . 1,698,997 250,565 1,949,562
Overdraft facility repayable on demand” -, (10,376) (10,376)

‘ - 1,698,997 240,189 1,939,186
Loans falling due within one year ~ - (27,173) (27,173)
Loans’fal_ling due after more than oneyear - (244,554) (244,554)

1,698,997 (31,538)

1,667,459

22 Capital commitments

]

A major funding grant was approved for a boiler replacement in the financial year 2021/22. £401,590
has been capitalised in the current financial year. The project is due to be completed in, the financial
‘year 2023/24. Gildredge House is responsible for repaying 25% of the grant via a CIF loan over 10 years
from.completion of the project. The remaining 75% will be fully funded via additional grants received in

,the year.

In the financial year 2023/24 £85, 544 was pald in respect of a various works associated wnth the library

project, whlch Glldredge House was committed to prior to 31 August 2023.

-56-



GILDREDGE HOUSE FREE SCHOOL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

23 Related party transactions

meg to thee nature of the Academy Trust's operatlons and the composition of the Board of Governors
belng drawn from local public and private sector arganisations, transactions ‘may take place with
organisations.in which the Academy Trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations
are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Academy Trust's fmanual regulatlons and
normal procurement procedures :

Exgenditure related party transactions ' ‘ 4
No related party trénsa_ctions took place in the period of account other than certain Governors'
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10. - : :

" 24 Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the -

event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be

a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
. before he or she ceases to be a member.

-57-



